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Unless the context indicates otherwise, references in this Quarterly Report to "we," "us," "our," the "Company," and "PAR" mean PAR Technology Corporation and its
consolidated subsidiaries.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2024 contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. Forward-looking statements are not historical in nature, but rather are predictive of PAR's future operations, financial condition, financial results, business strategies and
prospects. Forward-looking statements are generally identified by words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “can”, “could”, “continue,” “expect,” “estimate,” “future”, “goal”, “intend,” “may,”
“opportunity,” “plan,” “should,” "strive," “target”, "vision," “will,” “would,” “will likely result,” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are based on management's current
expectations and assumptions that are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond PAR's control, which could cause PAR's actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in or implied by forward-looking statements, including statements relating to and PAR's expectations regarding: the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future
operations, including PAR’s service and product offerings, its go-to-market strategies and the expected development, demand, performance, market share or competitive performance of
its products and services; PAR's ability to achieve and sustain profitability; projections of net revenue, margins, expenses, cash flows, or other financial items; PAR's annual recurring
revenue, active sites, subscription service margins, net loss, net loss per share and other key performance indicators and non-GAAP financial measures; PAR's expectations about the
availability and terms of product and component supplies for our hardware; the timing and expected benefits of acquisitions, divestitures, and capital markets transactions; PAR’s human
capital strategies and engagement; current or future macroeconomic trends or geopolitical events and the impact of those trends and events on PAR and its business, financial condition,
and results of operations; claims, disputes or other litigation matters; and assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. Factors, risks, trends, and uncertainties that could cause PAR’s
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by forward-looking statements include: PAR's ability to successfully develop or acquire and transition new products
and services and enhance existing products and services to meet evolving customer needs and respond to emerging technological trends, including artificial intelligence; PAR's ability to
add and maintain active sites, retain and manage suppliers, secure alternative suppliers, and manage inventory levels, manufacturing disruptions or logistics challenges, including
shipping delays and cost increases; PAR's ability to successfully attract, develop and retain necessary qualified employees to develop and expand its business, and execute product
installations and respond to customer service level needs; the protection of PAR's intellectual property; PAR's ability to retain and add integration partners, and its success in acquiring
and developing relevant technology for current, new, and potential customers for its service and product offerings; macroeconomic trends, such as a recession or slowed economic
growth, fluctuating interest rates, inflation, and changes in consumer confidence and discretionary spending; geopolitical events, such as effects of the Russia-Ukraine war, tensions with
China and between China and Taiwan, the Israel-Hamas conflict and other hostilities in the Middle East; risks associated with PAR's international operations; the effects of global
pandemics, such as COVID-19 or other public health crises; changes in estimates and assumptions PAR makes in connection with the preparation of its financial statements, or in
building its business and operational plans and in executing PAR's strategies; disruptions in operations from data breaches and cyberattacks, including heightened risks due to the rapid
development and adoption of artificial intelligence technologies globally; PAR's ability to maintain proper and effective internal control over financial reporting; PAR's ability to execute its
business, operational plans, and strategies and manage its business continuity risks, including disruptions or delays in product assembly and fulfillment; potential impacts, liabilities and
costs from pending or potential investigations, claims and disputes; and other factors, risks, trends and uncertainties that could cause PAR's actual results to differ materially from those
expressed in or implied by forward-looking statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) on February 27, 2024, in this Quarterly Report, and in our other filings with the SEC. Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or
otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities law.
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share amounts)
(unaudited)

Assets March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Current assets:   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,780  $ 37,369  

Cash held on behalf of customers 12,558  10,170  

Short-term investments 21,730  37,194  

Accounts receivable – net 69,958  63,382  

Inventories 25,054  23,594  

Other current assets 14,205  8,890  

Total current assets 194,285  180,599  

Property, plant and equipment – net 15,356  15,755  

Goodwill 619,632  489,654  

Intangible assets – net 157,713  94,852  

Lease right-of-use assets 3,627  4,083  

Other assets 18,300  17,663  

Total Assets $ 1,008,913  $ 802,606  

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   

Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable $ 39,832  $ 29,808  

Accrued salaries and benefits 14,264  19,141  

Accrued expenses 11,153  10,443  

Customers payable 12,558  10,170  

Lease liabilities – current portion 1,201  1,366  

Customer deposits and deferred service revenue 14,710  9,304  

Total current liabilities 93,718  80,232  

Lease liabilities – net of current portion 2,519  2,819  

Long-term debt 378,155  377,647  

Deferred service revenue – noncurrent 3,296  4,204  

Other long-term liabilities 4,825  4,639  

Total liabilities 482,513  469,541  

Shareholders’ equity:   

Preferred stock, $ 0.02 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized —  —  

Common stock, $ 0.02 par value, 58,000,000 shares authorized, 35,439,115 and 29,386,234 shares issued,
33,973,906 and 28,029,915 outstanding at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively 703  584  

Additional paid in capital 844,210  625,154  

Accumulated deficit ( 293,244 ) ( 274,956 )

Accumulated other comprehensive loss ( 3,653 ) ( 939 )

Treasury stock, at cost, 1,465,209 shares and 1,356,319 shares at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectively ( 21,616 ) ( 16,778 )

Total shareholders’ equity 526,400  333,065  

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 1,008,913  $ 802,606  

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2024 2023

Revenues, net:

Hardware $ 18,226  $ 26,777  

Subscription service 38,379  27,965  

Professional service 13,468  13,842  

Contract 35,424  31,853  

Total revenues, net 105,497  100,437  

Costs of sales:

Hardware 14,170  22,381  

Subscription service 18,594  13,925  

Professional service 11,251  11,366  

Contract 32,919  29,572  

Total cost of sales 76,934  77,244  

Gross margin 28,563  23,193  

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing 10,926  9,398  

General and administrative 25,608  18,080  

Research and development 15,768  14,315  

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets 932  464  

Adjustment to contingent consideration liability —  ( 5,200 )

Total operating expenses 53,234  37,057  

Operating loss ( 24,671 ) ( 13,864 )

Other income (expense), net 306  ( 59 )

Interest expense, net ( 1,708 ) ( 1,667 )

Loss before benefit from (provision for) income taxes ( 26,073 ) ( 15,590 )

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 7,785  ( 315 )

Net loss $ ( 18,288 ) $ ( 15,905 )

Net loss per share (basic and diluted) $ ( 0.62 ) $ ( 0.58 )

Weighted average shares outstanding (basic and diluted) 29,516 27,344

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Net loss $ ( 18,288 ) $ ( 15,905 )

Other comprehensive loss, net of applicable tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments ( 2,714 ) ( 42 )

Comprehensive loss $ ( 21,002 ) $ ( 15,947 )

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Common Stock Additional 
Paid in 
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Treasury Stock Total
Shareholders’

EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

Balances at December 31, 2023 29,386  $ 584  $ 625,154  $ ( 274,956 ) $ ( 939 ) 1,356  $ ( 16,778 ) $ 333,065  

Issuance of common stock upon the exercise of stock options 107  2  1,103  — — — — 1,105  

Net issuance of restricted stock awards and restricted stock units 329  4  ( 4 ) — — — — —  

Issuance of common stock for acquisition (see Note 3) 442  9  19,161  — — — — 19,170  

Proceeds from private placement of common stock, net of issuance costs
of $ 5.5 million 5,175  104  194,386  — — — — 194,490  

Treasury stock acquired from employees upon vesting or forfeiture of
restricted stock — — — — — 109  ( 4,838 ) ( 4,838 )

Stock-based compensation — — 4,410  — — — — 4,410  

Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — ( 2,714 ) — — ( 2,714 )

Net loss — — — ( 18,288 ) — — — ( 18,288 )

Balances at March 31, 2024 35,439  $ 703  $ 844,210  $ ( 293,244 ) $ ( 3,653 ) 1,465  $ ( 21,616 ) $ 526,400  

Common Stock
Additional 

Paid in 
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Loss

Treasury Stock
Total

Shareholders’
EquityShares Amount Shares Amount

Balances at December 31, 2022 28,590  $ 570  $ 595,286  $ ( 205,204 ) $ ( 1,365 ) 1,271  $ ( 14,093 ) $ 375,194  

Issuance of common stock upon the exercise of stock options 5  — 52  — — — — 52  

Net issuance of restricted stock awards and restricted stock units 160  2  — — — — — 2  

Treasury stock acquired from employees upon vesting or forfeiture of
restricted stock — — — — — 79  ( 2,478 ) ( 2,478 )

Stock-based compensation — — 3,055  — — — — 3,055  

Foreign currency translation adjustments — — — — ( 42 ) — — ( 42 )

Net loss — — — ( 15,905 ) — — — ( 15,905 )

Balances at March 31, 2023 28,755  $ 572  $ 598,393  $ ( 221,109 ) $ ( 1,407 ) 1,350  $ ( 16,571 ) $ 359,878  

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss $ ( 18,288 ) $ ( 15,905 )

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 7,226  6,933  

Accretion of debt in interest expense, net 508  522  

Accretion of discount on held to maturity investments in interest expense, net ( 397 ) —  

Current expected credit losses 564  489  

Provision for obsolete inventory 108  88  

Stock-based compensation 4,410  3,055  

Adjustment to contingent consideration liability —  ( 5,200 )

Deferred income tax ( 8,049 ) —  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable ( 5,090 ) ( 7,034 )

Inventories ( 1,605 ) 5,051  

Other current assets ( 4,552 ) ( 2,512 )

Other assets ( 724 ) 752  

Accounts payable 9,521  4,063  

Accrued salaries and benefits ( 5,160 ) ( 7,647 )

Accrued expenses ( 3,376 ) 1,067  

Customer deposits and deferred service revenue ( 945 ) ( 343 )

Customers payable 2,388  216  

Other long-term liabilities ( 115 ) ( 343 )

Net cash used in operating activities ( 23,576 ) ( 16,748 )

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acquired ( 166,292 ) —  

Capital expenditures ( 45 ) ( 823 )

Capitalization of software costs ( 1,385 ) ( 481 )

Proceeds from sale of held to maturity investments 18,980  24,610  

Purchases of held to maturity investments ( 3,119 ) ( 25,073 )

Net cash used in investing activities ( 151,861 ) ( 1,767 )

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from private placement of common stock, net of issuance costs 194,490  —  

Treasury stock acquired from employees upon vesting or forfeiture of restricted stock ( 4,838 ) ( 2,478 )

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,105  52  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 190,757  ( 2,426 )

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 479  ( 512 )

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers 15,799  ( 21,453 )

Cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers at beginning of period 47,539  77,533  

Cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers at end of period $ 63,338  $ 56,080  

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers

Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,780  $ 48,659  

Cash held on behalf of customers 12,558  7,421  

Total cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers $ 63,338  $ 56,080  

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(In thousands)
(unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid for income taxes $ 340  $ 507  

Capitalized software recorded in accounts payable 24  776  

Capital expenditures in accounts payable 176  87  

Common stock issued for acquisition 19,170  —  

See accompanying notes to unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
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PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION
NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business

PAR Technology Corporation (the “Company” or “PAR,” “we,” or “us”), through its consolidated subsidiaries, operates in two segments - the Restaurant/Retail segment and the
Government segment. The Restaurant/Retail segment provides leading omnichannel cloud-based software and hardware solutions to the restaurant and retail industries. Our product
and service offerings include point-of-sale, customer engagement and loyalty, digital ordering and delivery, operational intelligence technologies, payment processing, hardware, and
related technologies, solutions, and services. We provide enterprise restaurants, franchisees, and other restaurant outlets in the three major restaurant categories - quick service, fast
casual, and table service - with operational efficiencies through a data-driven network with integration capabilities from point-of-sale to the kitchen, to fulfillment. Our subscription services
are grouped into two categories: Engagement Cloud, which includes Punchh and Stuzo for customer loyalty and engagement and MENU for omnichannel digital ordering and delivery
and Operator Cloud, which includes Brink POS for front-of-house, PAR Payment Services and PAR Pay for payments, and Data Central for back-of-house. PAR's Government segment
provides technical expertise and development of advanced systems and software solutions for the U.S. Department of Defense ("DoD"), the intelligence community and other federal
agencies. Additionally, we provide support services for satellite command and control, communication, and information technology systems at several DoD facilities worldwide. The
Government segment has three principal contract offerings: intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance solutions ("ISR Solutions"), mission systems operations and maintenance
("Mission Systems"), and commercial software products for use in analytic and operational environments that leverage geospatial intelligence data ("Commercial Software"). The
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Company's accounts and those of its consolidated subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of PAR Technology Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial statements and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Regulation S-X pertaining to interim financial
statements as promulgated by the SEC. In the opinion of management, the Company's financial statements include all normal and recurring adjustments necessary in order to make the
financial statements not misleading and to provide a fair presentation of the Company's financial results for the interim period included in this Quarterly Report. Interim results are not
necessarily indicative of results for the full year or any future periods. The information included in this Quarterly Report should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Annual Report”).
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management of the Company to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Significant
items subject to these estimates and assumptions include revenue recognition, stock-based compensation, the recognition and measurement of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in business combinations at fair value, the carrying amount of property, plant, and equipment including right-to-use assets and liabilities, identifiable intangible assets and goodwill,
valuation allowances for receivables, valuation of excess and obsolete inventories, and measurement of contingent consideration at fair value. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

8
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Cash and Cash Equivalents and Cash Held on Behalf of Customers

Cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers consist of the following:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash $ 48,593  $ 37,329  

Money market funds 2,187  40  

Cash held on behalf of customers 12,558  10,170  

Total cash and cash equivalents and cash held on behalf of customers $ 63,338  $ 47,539  

The Company maintained bank balances that, at times, exceeded the federally insured limit during the three months ended March 31, 2024. The Company has not experienced
losses relating to these deposits and management does not believe that the Company is exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to these amounts.

Short-Term Investments

The carrying value of investment securities consist of the following:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Short-term investments

Treasury bills and notes $ 21,730  $ 37,194  

Total short-term investments $ 21,730  $ 37,194  

The Company did not record any material gains or losses on these securities during the three months ended March 31, 2024. The estimated fair value of these securities
approximated their carrying value as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Other Assets

Other assets include deferred implementation costs of $ 8.5  million and $ 8.8  million and deferred commissions of $ 3.1 million and $ 2.6 million at March 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively. Amortization of deferred implementation costs were $ 1.5  million and $ 1.0  million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Amortization of deferred commissions were $ 0.4  million and $ 0.2  million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Other assets also include the cash surrender value of life insurance related to the Company’s deferred compensation plan eligible to certain employees. The funded balance is
reviewed on an annual basis. The balance of the life insurance policies was $ 3.3  million and $ 3.3  million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities include amounts owed to employees that participate in the Company’s deferred compensation plan. Amounts owed to employees participating in the
deferred compensation plan were $ 1.2 million and $ 1.4 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

Operating Expenses Presentation Changes

Beginning with the 2023 Annual Report, we have retroactively split our historical "Selling, general and administrative" financial statement line item ("FSLI"), presented in the
condensed consolidated statements of operations under "Operating expenses" into two FSLIs, "Sales and marketing" and "General and administrative", to provide clearer insight into
these operationally and economically different operating expenses. This split did not change our total historical operating expenses previously reported.

9
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Related Party Transactions

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, Ronald Shaich, the sole member of Act III Management LLC ("Act III Management"), served as a strategic advisor to the
Company's board of directors pursuant to a strategic advisor agreement, which terminated on June 1, 2023. Keith Pascal, a director of the Company, is an employee of Act III
Management and serves as its vice president and secretary. Mr. Pascal does not have an ownership interest in Act III Management.

As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had zero accounts payable owed to Act III Management. During the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023,
the Company paid Act III Management zero and $ 0.1 million, respectively, for services performed under the strategic advisor agreement.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

There were no recent accounting pronouncements or changes in accounting pronouncements during the three months ended March 31, 2024 that are of significance or potential
significance to the Company.

Note 2 — Revenue Recognition

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue attributable to each of the Company's reporting segments is as follows:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Current under one year Non-current over one year Current under one year Non-current over one year

Restaurant/Retail $ 12,897  $ 3,296  $ 7,250  $ 4,204  

Government —  —  —  —  

Total $ 12,897  $ 3,296  $ 7,250  $ 4,204  

Most performance obligations greater than one year relate to service and support contracts, that the Company expects to fulfill within 36 months. The Company expects to fulfill
100 % of service and support contracts within 60 months.

The changes in deferred revenue, inclusive of both current and long-term, are as follows:

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Beginning balance - January 1 $ 11,454  $ 13,584  

Acquired deferred revenue (Note 3) 5,443  —  

Recognition of deferred revenue ( 6,398 ) ( 7,550 )

Deferral of revenue 5,694  7,668  

Ending balance - March 31 $ 16,193  $ 13,702  

The above tables exclude customer deposits of $ 1.8  million and $ 1.6  million as of the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. During the three months
ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized revenue included in deferred revenue at the beginning of each respective period of $ 2.7 million and $ 3.1 million.

In the Government segment, the value of existing contracts at March 31, 2024, net of amounts relating to work performed to that date, was approximately $ 315.4 million, of
which $ 72.0 million was funded, and at December 31, 2023, the value of existing contracts, net of amounts relating to work performed to that date, was approximately $ 326.0 million, of
which $ 73.2 million was funded.

10
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The value of existing contracts in the Government segment, net of amounts relating to work performed at March 31, 2024, is expected to be recognized as revenue over time as
follows:

(in thousands)

Next 12 months $ 192,342  

Months 13-24 87,865  

Months 25-36 16,996  

Thereafter 18,223  

Total $ 315,426  

Disaggregated Revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by major product line for each of its reporting segments because the Company believes it best depicts how
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by contract terms and economic factors.

Disaggregated revenue is as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31, 2024

(in thousands)
Restaurant/Retail

point in time
Restaurant/Retail

over time Government point in time
Government

over time

Hardware $ 18,226  $ —  $ —  $ —  

Subscription service —  38,379  —  —  

Professional service 5,726  7,742  —  —  

Mission systems —  —  —  8,247  

Intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance
solutions —  —  —  26,756  

Commercial software —  —  234  187  

Total $ 23,952  $ 46,121  $ 234  $ 35,190  

Three Months Ended March 31, 2023

(in thousands)
Restaurant/Retail

point in time
Restaurant/Retail

over time Government point in time
Government

over time

Hardware $ 26,777  $ —  $ —  $ —  

Subscription service —  27,965  —  —  

Professional service 6,485  7,357  —  —  

Mission systems —  —  —  9,383  

Intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance
solutions —  —  —  22,216  

Commercial software —  —  80  174  

Total $ 33,262  $ 35,322  $ 80  $ 31,773  

Note 3 — Acquisitions

On March 8, 2024, ParTech, Inc. ("ParTech"), acquired 100 % of the outstanding equity interests of Stuzo Blocker, Inc., Stuzo Holdings, LLC and their subsidiaries (collectively,
“Stuzo” and such acquisition, the “Stuzo Acquisition”), a digital engagement software provider to Convenience and Fuel Retailers (C-Stores), for purchase consideration of approximately
$ 170.5  million paid in cash (the "Cash Consideration"), subject to certain adjustments (including customary adjustments for Stuzo cash, debt, debt-like items, and net working capital),
and $ 19.2  million paid in shares of Company common stock. 441,598 shares of common stock were issued as purchase consideration, determined using a fair value share price of $
43.41 . The Company acquired Stuzo to expand our footprint in the C-Stores market vertical with an industry-leading guest engagement platform serving major brands in the space.
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Consideration paid in cash on the date of acquisition included $ 1.5  million deposited into an escrow account administered by a third party to fund potential post-closing
adjustments and obligations. The balance in the escrow account was $ 1.5  million as of March 31, 2024.

The Company incurred acquisition expenses related to its acquisition of Stuzo of approximately $ 2.9 million.

The transaction was accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations. Accordingly, assets acquired and liabilities assumed
have been accounted for at their preliminarily determined respective fair values as of March 8, 2024, the date of acquisition. The fair value determinations were based on management's
best estimates and assumptions, and with the assistance of independent valuation and tax consultants. Identified preliminary fair values are subject to measurement period adjustments
within the permitted measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date) as management finalizes its procedures and net working capital adjustments are settled.

The following table presents management's preliminary purchase price allocation:

(in thousands) Purchase price allocation

Cash $ 4,244  

Accounts receivable 2,208  

Property and equipment 307  

Developed technology 18,200  

Customer relationships 39,000  

Trade name and trademarks 6,600  

Non-competition agreements 4,800  

Prepaid and other acquired assets 774  

Goodwill 132,140  

Total assets 208,273  

Accounts payable 317  

Accrued expenses 4,459  

Deferred revenue 5,443  

Deferred taxes 8,349  

Consideration paid $ 189,705  

Intangible Assets

The Company identified four acquired intangible assets in the Stuzo Acquisition: developed technology; customer relationships; the Stuzo trade name and trademarks; and non-
competition agreements. The preliminary fair value of developed technology and customer relationship intangible assets were determined utilizing the “multi-period excess earnings
method”, which is predicated upon the calculation of the net present value of after-tax net cash flows respectively attributable to each asset. The Company applied a seven-year
economic life and discount rate of 12.5 % in determining the Stuzo developed technology intangible fair value. The Company applied a 7.0 % estimated annual attrition rate and discount
rate of 12.5 % in determining the Stuzo customer relationships intangible preliminary fair value. The preliminary fair value of the Stuzo trade name and trademarks intangible was
determined utilizing the “relief from royalty” approach, which is a form of the income approach that attributes savings incurred from not having to pay a royalty for the use of an asset.
The Company applied a fair and reasonable royalty rate of 1.0 % and discount rate of 12.5 % in determining the Stuzo trade name intangible preliminary fair value. The preliminary fair
value of the Stuzo non-competition agreements was determined utilizing the discounted earnings method. The estimated useful life of these identifiable intangible assets was
preliminarily determined to be seven years for the developed technology, twelve years for the customer relationships, indefinite for the Stuzo trade name and trademarks, and five years
for the non-competition agreements.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration transferred for the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and is tested for impairment at least annually. The goodwill value
represents expected synergies from the product acquired and other benefits. It is not deductible for income tax purposes.

Deferred Taxes

The Company determined the deferred tax position to be recorded at the time of the Stuzo Acquisition in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, resulting in recognition
of $ 8.3  million in deferred tax liabilities for future reversing of taxable temporary differences primarily for intangible assets.

The net deferred tax liability relating to the Stuzo Acquisition was determined by the Company to provide future taxable temporary differences that allow for the Company to
utilize certain previously fully reserved deferred tax assets. Accordingly, the Company recognized a reduction to its valuation allowance resulting in a net tax benefit of $ 8.1  million for
the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Pro Forma Financial Information - unaudited

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Stuzo Acquisition resulted in additional revenues of $ 2.7  million and net income of $ 0.4  million.

The following table summarizes the Company's unaudited pro forma results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 as if the Stuzo Acquisition had
occurred on January 1, 2023:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Total revenue $ 113,070  $ 110,202  

Net loss ( 25,186 ) ( 8,158 )

The unaudited pro forma results presented above are for illustrative purposes only and do not reflect the realization of actual cost savings or any related integration costs. The unaudited pro forma results do not purport to

be indicative of the results that would have been obtained, or to be a projection of results that may be obtained in the future. These unaudited pro forma results include certain adjustments, primarily due to increases in

amortization expense due to the fair value adjustments of intangible assets, acquisition related costs and the impact of income taxes on the pro forma adjustments. $ 2.4  million of acquisition costs have been reflected in

the 2023 pro forma results.

Note 4 — Accounts Receivable, net

The Company’s net accounts receivables consist of:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Government segment $ 23,698  $ 20,703  

Restaurant/Retail segment 46,260  42,679  

Accounts receivable, net $ 69,958  $ 63,382  

At March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had current expected credit losses of $ 2.0 million and $ 1.9 million, respectively, against accounts receivable for the
Restaurant/Retail segment.

Changes in the current expected credit loss for the three months ended March 31 were:

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Beginning Balance - January 1 $ 1,949  $ 2,134  

Provisions 564  489  

Write-offs ( 557 ) ( 110 )

Ending Balance - March 31 $ 1,956  $ 2,513  
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Note 5 — Inventories, net

The components of inventory, adjusted for reserves, consisted of the following:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Finished goods $ 14,973  $ 13,564  

Work in process 234  216  

Component parts 9,203  9,147  

Service parts 644  667  

Inventories, net $ 25,054  $ 23,594  

At March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had excess and obsolescence reserves of $ 9.1 million and $ 9.0 million, respectively, against inventories.

Note 6 — Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill

The Company's identifiable intangible assets represent intangible assets acquired in acquisitions and software development costs.  The components of identifiable intangible
assets are:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Estimated
Useful Life

Weighted-Average
Amortization Period

Acquired developed technology $ 138,000  $ 119,800  3 - 7 years 4.80 years

Internally developed software costs 37,346  36,876  3 years 1.83 years

Customer relationships 53,510  14,510  7 - 12 years 10.50 years

Trade names 1,410  1,410  2 - 5 years 0.75 years

Non-competition agreements 4,830  30  1 - 5 years 5 years

 235,096  172,626   

Impact of currency translation on intangible assets 581  1,399  

Less: accumulated amortization ( 94,590 ) ( 88,259 )  

 141,087  85,766   

Internally developed software costs not meeting general release
threshold 3,826  2,886  

Trademarks, trade names (non-amortizable) 12,800  6,200  Indefinite

 $ 157,713  $ 94,852  

Software costs placed into service during the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, were $ 0.5  million and $ 0.9  million, respectively.

The following table summarizes amortization expense for acquired developed technology and internally developed software:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Amortization of acquired developed technology $ 4,235  $ 4,078  

Amortization of internally developed software 1,326  1,735  

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets recorded in cost of sales 5,561  5,813  

Amortization expense recorded in operating expenses 932  464  

Impact of foreign currency translation on intangible assets 639  ( 129 )
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The expected future amortization of intangible assets, assuming straight-line amortization of capitalized software development costs and acquisition related intangibles, excluding
software development costs not meeting the general release threshold, is as follows:

(in thousands)

2024, remaining $ 21,973  

2025 28,541  

2026 25,665  

2027 21,900  

2028 12,323  

Thereafter 30,685  

Total $ 141,087  

Goodwill carried by the Restaurant/Retail and Government segments is as follows:

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Beginning balance - January 1 $ 489,654  $ 486,762  

Stuzo Acquisition 132,140  —  

Foreign currency translation ( 2,162 ) 321  

Ending balance - March 31 $ 619,632  $ 487,083  

Note 7 — Debt

The following table summarizes information about the net carrying amounts of long-term debt as of March 31, 2024:

(in thousands) 2026 Notes 2027 Notes Total

Principal amount of notes outstanding $ 120,000  $ 265,000  $ 385,000  

Unamortized debt issuance cost ( 1,628 ) ( 5,217 ) ( 6,845 )

Total notes payable $ 118,372  $ 259,783  $ 378,155  

The following table summarizes information about the net carrying amounts of long-term debt as of December 31, 2023:

(in thousands) 2026 Notes 2027 Notes Total

Principal amount of notes outstanding $ 120,000  $ 265,000  $ 385,000  

Unamortized debt issuance cost ( 1,811 ) ( 5,542 ) ( 7,353 )

Total notes payable $ 118,189  $ 259,458  $ 377,647  

The following table summarizes interest expense recognized on the long-term debt:

Three Months
Ended March 31,

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Contractual interest expense $ 1,856  $ 2,011  

Accretion of debt in interest expense 508  522  

Total interest expense $ 2,364  $ 2,533  
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The following table summarizes the future principal payments as of March 31, 2024:

(in thousands)

2024, remaining $ —  

2025 —  

2026 120,000  

2027 265,000  

2028 —  

Thereafter —  

Total $ 385,000  

Note 8 — Common Stock

In connection with, and to partially fund the Cash Consideration related to the Stuzo Acquisition, on March 7, 2024, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement
(the "Purchase Agreement") with funds and accounts advised by T. Rowe Price Investment Management, Inc., ADW Capital, Voss Capital, Greenhaven Road Capital, Jane Street,
Progeny 3, Fund 1 Investments LLC, Newtyn Capital, Ghisallo Capital Management and Burkehill Global Management (collectively, the “Purchasers”) to raise approximately $ 200
 million through a private placement of PAR common stock. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, PAR issued and sold 5,174,638 shares of its common stock at a 10 % discount to the
Purchasers for a gross purchase price of approximately $ 200  million ($ 38.65 per share). Net proceeds from the Purchase Agreement were approximately $ 194.4 million, net of
issuance costs of $ 5.5 million.

On January 2, 2024, the Company entered into a consulting agreement with PAR Act III, LLC ("PAR Act III") pursuant to which PAR Act III will provide the Company with
strategic consulting, merger and acquisition technology due diligence, and other professional and expert services that may be requested from time to time by the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer through April 8, 2026. In consideration for the services provided under the consulting agreement, the Company amended its common stock purchase warrant issued to
PAR Act III on April 8, 2021 (the "Warrant") to extend the termination date of the Warrant to April 8, 2028, subject to the consulting agreement remaining in effect through April 8, 2026.

The issuance date fair value of the Warrant extension was determined to be $ 4.5 million based on using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions as of January
2, 2024:

Original Warrant Modified Warrant

Expected term 2.25 years 4.25 years

Risk free interest rate 4.33  % 3.93  %

Expected volatility 55.01  % 63.39  %

Expected dividend yield None None

Fair value (per warrant) $ 7.36  $ 16.21  

In connection with the Company's March 2024 offering of its common stock, as a result of anti-dilution provisions of the Warrant, an additional 6,312 shares of common stock are
available for purchase under the Warrant, at an exercise price of $ 74.96 per share. 100 % of the shares available for purchase under the Warrant are exercisable at the exercise price
of $ 74.96 per share.

The Warrant is accounted for as stock-based compensation to non-employees pursuant to ASC Topic 718,  Stock Compensation, by way of ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging, due to the Warrant extension being in exchange for consulting services. The issuance date fair value of the Warrant extension of $ 4.5  million will be recognized as stock
based compensation expense ratably over the requisite service period for the Warrant extension ending April 8, 2026.

Note 9 — Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense, net of forfeitures of $ 0.7 million and $ 0.1 million, was $ 4.4 million and $ 3.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.
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At March 31, 2024, the aggregate unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested equity awards was $ 35.5 million, which is expected to be recognized as
compensation expense in fiscal years 2024 through 2027.

A summary of stock option activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 is below:

(in thousands, except for weighted average exercise price) Options outstanding

Weighted
average

exercise price

Outstanding at January 1, 2024 920  $ 13.04  

Exercised ( 107 ) 10.29  

Canceled/forfeited ( 11 ) 9.94  

Outstanding at March 31, 2024 802  $ 13.46  

A summary of unvested restricted stock units activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 is below:

(in thousands, except for weighted average award value)
Restricted Stock 

Unit Awards

Weighted
average

award value

Outstanding at January 1, 2024 839  $ 35.83  

Granted 429  48.81  

Vested ( 329 ) 32.88  

Canceled/forfeited ( 110 ) 34.88  

Outstanding at March 31, 2024 829  $ 44.38  

A total of 330,000 shares of Company common stock are available for purchase under the Company's 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"), subject to adjustment as
provided for in the ESPP. As of March 31, 2024, no shares of common stock were purchased.

Note 10 — Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share is calculated in accordance with ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share , which specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure requirements for earnings
per share (“EPS”). It requires the presentation of basic and diluted EPS. Basic EPS excludes all dilution and is based upon the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that would occur if convertible securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised. At March 31,
2024, there were 802,000 anti-dilutive stock options outstanding compared to 1,021,000 as of March 31, 2023. At March 31, 2024 there were 829,000 anti-dilutive restricted stock units
compared to 634,000 as of March 31, 2023.

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is party to legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. Additionally, U.S. Government contract costs are subject to periodic
audit and adjustment. Based on information currently available, and based on its evaluation of such information, the Company believes the legal proceedings in which it is currently
involved are not material or are not likely to result in a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations, or cannot currently be estimated.

Note 12 — Segment and Related Information

The Company is organized in two segments, Restaurant/Retail and Government. Management views the Restaurant/Retail and Government segments separately in operating
its business, as the products and services are different for each segment. Information noted as “Other” primarily relates to the Company’s corporate operations.
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Information as to the Company’s segments is set forth in the tables below:

Three Months Ended March 31,

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Revenues:

Restaurant/Retail $ 70,073  $ 68,584  

Government 35,424  31,853  

Total $ 105,497  $ 100,437  

Operating (loss) income:

Restaurant/Retail $ ( 26,965 ) $ ( 16,146 )

Government 2,294  2,282  

Total ( 24,671 ) ( 13,864 )

Other income (expense), net 306  ( 59 )

Interest expense, net ( 1,708 ) ( 1,667 )

Loss before benefit from (provision for) income taxes $ ( 26,073 ) $ ( 15,590 )

Depreciation, amortization and accretion:

Restaurant/Retail $ 7,615  $ 7,340  

Government 119  115  

Total $ 7,734  $ 7,455  

Capital expenditures including software costs:

Restaurant/Retail $ 1,503  $ 2,037  

Government 127  130  

Total $ 1,630  $ 2,167  

Revenues by country:

United States $ 99,957  $ 95,437  

International 5,540  5,000  

Total $ 105,497  $ 100,437  

The following table represents assets by reporting segment:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Restaurant/Retail $ 894,236  $ 694,568  

Government 29,469  24,475  

Other 85,208  83,563  

Total $ 1,008,913  $ 802,606  

The following table represents assets by country based on the location of the assets:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

United States $ 978,952  $ 767,894  

International 29,961  34,712  

Total $ 1,008,913  $ 802,606  
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The following table represents goodwill by reporting segment:

(in thousands) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Restaurant/Retail $ 618,896  $ 488,918  

Government 736  736  

Total $ 619,632  $ 489,654  

Customers comprising 10% or more of the Company’s total revenues by reporting segment are summarized as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2024 2023

Restaurant/Retail reporting segment:

Yum! Brands, Inc. 8  % 10  %

Government reporting segment:

U.S. Department of Defense 34  % 32  %

All Others 58  % 58  %

100  % 100  %

No other customer within "All Others" represented 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024 or 2023.

Note 13 — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments have been recorded at fair value using available market information and valuation techniques. The fair value hierarchy is based upon three
levels of input, which are:

Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (observable)

Level 2 — inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in inactive markets, or
other inputs that are observable market data for essentially the full term of the asset or liability (observable)

Level 3 — unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, but are significant to determining the fair value of the asset or liability (unobservable)

The Company’s financial instruments primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of customers, short-term investments, debt instruments and deferred
compensation assets and liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of customers, and short-term investments as of March 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023 were considered representative of their fair values because of their short-term nature. Debt instruments are recorded at principal amount net of unamortized debt
issuance cost and discount (refer to "Note 7 - Debt" for additional information). The estimated fair value of the 2.875 % Convertible Senior Notes due 2026 (the "2026 Notes") and 1.50
% Convertible Senior Notes due 2027 (the "2027 Notes") at March 31, 2024 was $ 149.1 million and $ 244.2 million respectively. The estimated fair value of the 2026 Notes and 2027
Notes at December 31, 2023 was $ 145.6 million and $ 236.1 million respectively. The valuation techniques used to determine the fair value of the Company's long-term debt are
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as they are derived from broker quotations.

Deferred compensation assets and liabilities primarily relate to the Company’s deferred compensation plan, which allows for pre-tax salary deferrals for certain key employees.
Changes in the fair value of the deferred compensation liabilities are derived using quoted prices in active markets of the asset selections made by plan participants. Deferred
compensation liabilities are classified in Level 2, the fair value classification as defined under FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, because their inputs are derived
principally from observable market data by correlation to the hypothetical investments. The Company holds insurance investments to partially offset the Company’s liabilities under its
deferred compensation plan, which are recorded at fair value each period using the cash surrender value of the insurance investments.
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The cash surrender value of the life insurance policy was $ 3.3  million and $ 3.3  million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively, and is included in other assets
on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Amounts owed to employees participating in the deferred compensation plan at March 31, 2024 were $ 1.2 million compared to $ 1.4
million at December 31, 2023 and are included in other long-term liabilities on the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

The Company uses a Monte Carlo simulation of a discounted cash flow model to determine the fair value of the earn-out liability associated with the acquisition of MENU
Technologies AG (the "MENU Acquisition"). Significant inputs used in the simulation are not observable in the market and thus the liability represents a Level 3 fair value measurement
as defined in ASC 820. Ultimately, the liability will be equivalent to the amount paid, and the difference between the fair value estimate and amount paid will be recorded in earnings.
The amount paid that is less than or equal to the liability on the acquisition date will be reflected as cash used in financing activities in the Company's condensed consolidated
statements of cash flows. Any amount paid in excess of the liability on the acquisition date will be reflected as cash used in operating activities.

The following table presents the changes in the estimated fair values of the Company’s liabilities for contingent consideration measured using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the three months ended March 31:

(in thousands) 2024 2023

Balance at January 1 $ 600  $ 9,800  

Change in fair value of contingent consideration —  ( 5,200 )

Balance at March 31 $ 600  $ 4,600  

The balance of the fair value of the liability was recorded within "Accrued expenses" in the condensed consolidated balance sheets. The change in fair value of contingent
consideration was recorded within "Adjustment to contingent consideration liability " in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The following table provides quantitative information associated with the fair value measurement of the Company’s liabilities for contingent consideration as of March 31, 2024
and December 31, 2023:

Contingency Type

Maximum Payout 
(undiscounted) (in

thousands) Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs
Weighted Average or

Range

Revenue based payments $ 5,600  $ 600  Monte Carlo Revenue volatility 25.0  %

Discount rate 11.5  %

Projected year of payments 2024

 Maximum payout as determined by Monte Carlo valuation simulation; the disclosed contingency is not subject to a contractual maximum payout.

(1)

(1)
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes thereto
included under "Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited)" of this Quarterly Report and our audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included under "Part II,
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of the 2023 Annual Report. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from the results contemplated by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed under "Forward-Looking
Statements".

OVERVIEW

Q1 2024 Performance Highlights

• Annual Recurring Revenues ("ARR") grew to $185.7 million - representing total growth of 60.2% and organic growth of 24.8% from $115.9 million reported as of March 31, 2023.

• Active sites expansion
◦ Engagement Cloud active sites expanded to 92.7 thousand - a 36.2% increase from the 68.1 thousand reported as of March 31, 2023.
◦ Operator Cloud active sites expanded to 27.0 thousand - a 20.7% increase from the 22.4 thousand reported as of March 31, 2023.

Q1 2024 Corporate Development Highlights

• Private Placement of Common Stock:  In connection with, and to partially fund the Stuzo Acquisition, on March 7, 2024, the Company issued and sold 5,174,638 shares of its
common stock at $38.65 per share. Net proceeds from the private placement were approximately $194.4 million, net of issuance costs of $5.5 million.

• Stuzo Acquisition: On March 8, 2024, the Company acquired Stuzo, a digital engagement software provider to Convenience and Fuel Retailers (C-Stores), for approximately
$190 million. The purchase consideration was approximately $170.5 million paid in cash, subject to certain adjustments (including customary adjustments for Stuzo cash, debt,
debt-like items, and net working capital), and $19.2 million paid in shares of Company common stock. The acquisition of Stuzo contributed $41.0 million in ARR and 20.7
thousand active sites included within Engagement Cloud as of March 31, 2024.

• TASK Announcement: On March 8, 2024, the Company and TASK Group Holdings Limited, an Australian public company limited by shares and listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange (“TASK”), entered into a Scheme Implementation Agreement, pursuant to which, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions, the Company will
acquire all TASK ordinary shares pursuant to a court-approved scheme of arrangement under Part 5.1 of Australia’s Corporations Act 2001. TASK is an Australia-based global
food service transaction platform, that offers international unified commerce solutions, including interactive customer engagement and seamless integration, tailored for major
brands worldwide. The acquisition of TASK is expected to contribute $40.0 million in ARR based on figures reported as of September 30, 2023. The closing of the TASK
Transaction is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2024, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions.

Refer to "Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Financial Measures" below for important information on key performance indicators and non-GAAP financial measures,
including ARR, active sites, and adjusted subscription service gross margin, used by us to evaluate Restaurant/Retail segment performance.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results:

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Revenues, net:

Hardware $ 18,226 $ 26,777 17.3 % 26.7 % (31.9) %

Subscription service 38,379 27,965 36.4 % 27.8 % 37.2 %

Professional service 13,468 13,842 12.8 % 13.8 % (2.7) %

Contract 35,424 31,853 33.6 % 31.7 % 11.2 %

Total revenues, net $ 105,497 $ 100,437 100.0 % 100.0 % 5.0 %

Gross margin

Hardware $ 4,056 $ 4,396 3.8 % 4.4 % (7.7) %

Subscription service 19,785 14,040 18.8 % 14.0 % 40.9 %

Professional service 2,217 2,476 2.1 % 2.5 % (10.5) %

Contract 2,505 2,281 2.4 % 2.3 % 9.8 %

Total gross margin $ 28,563 $ 23,193 27.1 % 23.1 % 23.2 %

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing $ 10,926 $ 9,398 10.4 % 9.4 % 16.3 %

General and administrative 25,608 18,080 24.3 % 18.0 % 41.6 %

Research and development 15,768 14,315 14.9 % 14.3 % 10.2 %

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets 932 464 0.9 % 0.5 % 100.9 %

Adjustment to contingent consideration liability — (5,200) — % (5.2)% (100.0) %

Total operating expenses $ 53,234 $ 37,057 50.5 % 36.9 % 43.7 %

Operating loss $ (24,671) $ (13,864) (23.4)% (13.8)% 78.0 %

Other income (expense), net 306 (59) 0.3 % (0.1)% (618.6) %

Interest expense, net (1,708) (1,667) (1.6)% (1.7)% 2.5 %

Loss before benefit from (provision for) income taxes (26,073) (15,590) (24.7)% (15.5)% 67.2 %

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes 7,785 (315) 7.4 % (0.3)% (2571.4)%

Net loss $ (18,288) $ (15,905) (17.3)% (15.8)% 15.0 %
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Segment Revenue by Product Line as Percentage of Total Revenue

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Hardware $ 18,226 $ 26,777 17.3 % 26.7 % (31.9) %

Subscription service 38,379 27,965 36.4 % 27.8 % 37.2 %

Professional service 13,468 13,842 12.8 % 13.8 % (2.7) %

Total Restaurant/Retail 70,073 68,584 66.4 % 68.3 % 2.2 %

Mission systems 8,247 9,383 7.8 % 9.3 % (12.1) %

ISR solutions 26,756 22,216 25.4 % 22.1 % 20.4 %

Commercial software 421 254 0.4 % 0.3 % 65.7 %

Total Government 35,424 31,853 33.6 % 31.7 % 11.2 %

Total revenue $ 105,497 $ 100,437 100.0 % 100.0 % 5.0 %

Revenues, Net

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Hardware $ 18,226 $ 26,777 17.3 % 26.7 % (31.9) %

Subscription service 38,379 27,965 36.4 % 27.8 % 37.2 %

Professional service 13,468 13,842 12.8 % 13.8 % (2.7) %

Contract 35,424 31,853 33.6 % 31.7 % 11.2 %

Total revenues, net $ 105,497 $ 100,437 100.0 % 100.0 % 5.0 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Total revenues were $105.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $5.1 million or 5.0% compared to $100.4 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023.

Hardware revenues were $18.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $8.6 million or 31.9% compared to $26.8 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. The decrease was substantially driven by decreases in hardware revenues from terminals of $3.2 million, peripherals (scanners, printers, payment devices) of $2.8
million, and kitchen display systems of $1.3 million, all substantially driven by the timing of enterprise customer hardware refreshes and the timing of the Company's market launch of its
next generation PAR terminal and headset.

Subscription service revenues were $38.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $10.4 million or 37.2% compared to $28.0 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2023. The increase was substantially driven by increased subscription service revenues from our Operator Cloud services of $5.9 million driven by a 20.7%
increase in active sites and a 22.2% increase in average revenue per site, and from our Engagement Cloud services of $4.5 million, primarily driven by $2.7 million of post acquisition
revenues from the Stuzo Acquisition. The residual increase of $1.8 million from our Engagement Cloud services was driven by a 5.8% organic increase in active sites and a 7.5%
organic increase in average revenue per site.

Professional service revenues were $13.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $0.4 million or 2.7% from $13.8 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. The decrease was substantially driven by a $1.3 million decrease in hardware repair services and field operations, partially offset by a $1.0 million increase in
installation services.

Contract revenues were $35.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $3.6
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million or 11.2% compared to $31.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. The increase was substantially driven by the Government segment's ISR Solutions product line
revenues due to continued Counter-small Unmanned Aircraft System tasks orders.

Gross Margin

Three Months Ended March 31, Gross Margin Percentage

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Hardware $ 4,056 $ 4,396 22.3 % 16.4 % 5.9 %

Subscription service 19,785 14,040 51.6 % 50.2 % 1.4 %

Professional service 2,217 2,476 16.5 % 17.9 % (1.4)%

Contract 2,505 2,281 7.1 % 7.2 % (0.1)%

Total gross margin 28,563 23,193 27.1 % 23.1 % 4.0 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Total gross margin as a percentage of revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, increased to 27.1% as compared to 23.1% for the three months ended March 31,
2023.

Hardware margin as a percentage of hardware revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, increased to 22.3% as compared to 16.4% for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. The increase in margin was substantially driven by improved inventory management resulting in lower excess and obsolescent inventory charges during the three
months ended March 31, 2024.

Subscription service margin as a percentage of subscription service revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, increased to 51.6% as compared to 50.2% for the
three months ended March 31, 2023. The increase was substantially driven by a continued focus on efficiency improvements with our hosting and customer support costs for our
Operator Cloud offerings as well as improved margins stemming from Stuzo's post-acquisition operations. Subscription service margin for the three months ended March 31, 2024,
included $5.4 million of amortization of acquired and internally developed technology compared to $5.7 million of amortization of acquired and internally developed technology for the
three months ended March 31, 2023. Excluding the amortization of acquired and internally developed technology, adjusted subscription service gross margin was 66% compared to 71%
for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, primarily driven by higher maintenance and support costs for our Engagement Cloud offerings (refer to "Non-GAAP
Financial Measures" below for important information regarding adjusted subscription service gross margin, a non-GAAP financial measure).

Professional service margin as a percentage of professional service revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, decreased to 16.5% as compared to 17.9% for the
three months ended March 31, 2023. The decrease was substantially driven by a decrease in margin for hardware service repair, partially offset by an increase in margin for field
operations.

Contract margin as a percentage of contract revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2024, was relatively unchanged at 7.1% as compared to 7.2% for the three months
ended March 31, 2023.

Sales and Marketing Expense ("S&M")

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Sales and marketing $ 10,926 $ 9,398 10.4 % 9.4 % 16.3 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

S&M expenses were $10.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $1.5 million or 16.3% compared to $9.4 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. The increase was substantially driven by $0.8 million of higher compensation costs for salaries, bonus, and commissions, $0.3 million in purchased
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services for marketing events, and $0.2 million of severance as we continue to support the growth of our business.

General and Administrative Expense ("G&A")

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

General and administrative $ 25,608 $ 18,080 24.3 % 18.0 % 41.6 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

G&A expenses were $25.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $7.5 million or 41.6% compared to $18.1 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. The increase was substantially driven by a $4.4 million increase in costs related to transaction due diligence. The residual increase of $3.1 million was driven by higher
compensation costs for salaries and bonuses of $1.9 million, stock-based compensation of $0.7 million, and severance of $0.5 million as we continue to efficiently support the growth of
our business.

Research and Development Expenses ("R&D")

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Research and development $ 15,768 $ 14,315 14.9 % 14.3 % 10.2 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

R&D expenses were $15.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $1.5 million or 10.2% compared to $14.3 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. The increase was substantially driven by an increase in R&D expense of $0.6 million driven by post-acquisition Stuzo R&D expenses and a $0.3 million increase in
severance costs. The residual increase of $0.6 million was substantially driven by increases in R&D expense for our Operator Cloud offerings of $0.3 million and hardware offerings of
$0.3 million, both driven by higher compensation costs for salaries and bonuses as we continue to improve and diversify our product and service offerings.

Other Operating Expenses

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets $ 932 $ 464 0.9 % 0.5 % 100.9 %

Adjustment to contingent consideration liability — (5,200) — % (5.2)% (100.0) %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets was $0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, an increase of $0.5 million as compared to $0.5 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2023.

Included in operating expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2023, was a $5.2 million decrease to the fair value of the contingent consideration liability for certain post-
closing revenue focused milestones from the MENU Acquisition. There was no comparable decrease to expense for the three months ended March 31, 2024.
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Other Income (Expense), Net

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Other income (expense), net $ 306 $ (59) 0.3 % (0.1)% (618.6) %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Other income (expense), net was $0.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $0.4 million compared to $(0.1) million for the three months ended
March 31, 2023. Other income (expense), net substantially includes rental income, net of applicable expenses, foreign currency transactions gains and losses and other non-operating
income/expenses. The change was substantially driven by sales and use tax expense and other miscellaneous expenses.

Interest Expense, Net

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Interest expense, net $ (1,708) $ (1,667) (1.6)% (1.7)% 2.5 %

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Interest expense, net was relatively unchanged at $1.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 as compared to $1.7 million for the three months ended March 31,
2023.

Taxes

Three Months Ended March 31, Percentage of total revenue Increase (decrease)

in thousands 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes $ 7,785 $ (315) 7.4 % (0.3)% (2571.4)%

For the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2023

Benefit from (provision for) income taxes was $7.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, a decrease of $8.1 million as compared to $(0.3) million for the three
months ended March 31, 2023. The change was substantially driven by a reduction of the Company’s valuation allowance which resulted from the establishment of deferred tax liabilities
related to the Stuzo Acquisition.

Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Financial Measures:

We monitor certain key performance indicators and non-GAAP financial measures in the evaluation and management of our business; certain key performance indicators and
non-GAAP financial measures are provided in this Quarterly Report because we believe they are useful in facilitating period-to-period comparisons of our business performance. Key
performance indicators and non-GAAP financial measures do not reflect and should be viewed independently of our financial performance determined in accordance with GAAP. Key
performance indicators and non-GAAP financial measures are not forecasts or indicators of future or expected results and should not have undue reliance placed upon them by
investors.

Key Performance Indicators

Within this Quarterly Report the Company makes reference to annual recurring revenue, or ARR, and active sites, which are both key performance indicators. The Company
utilizes ARR and active sites as key performance indicators of the scale of our subscription services for both new and existing customers.

ARR is the annualized revenue from our subscription services, which includes subscription fees for our SaaS solutions and related support, managed platform development
services, and transaction-based fees for
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payment processing services. We generally calculate ARR by annualizing the monthly recurring revenue for all active sites as of the last day of each month for the respective reporting
period. ARR is an operating measure, it does not reflect our revenue determined in accordance with GAAP, and ARR should be viewed independently of, and not combined with or
substituted for, our revenue and other financial information determined in accordance with GAAP. Further, ARR is not a forecast of future revenue and investors should not place undue
reliance on ARR as an indicator of our future or expected results.

Active sites represent locations active on our subscription services as of the last day of the respective reporting period.

Starting with this Quarterly Report, our key performance indicators ARR and active sites are presented as two subscription service product lines: Engagement Cloud (Punchh,
Stuzo, and MENU) and Operator Cloud (Brink POS, PAR Payment Services, PAR Pay, and Data Central). Our subscription service product lines were adjusted to align with how
management views our business after the Stuzo Acquisition.

Annual Recurring Revenue

As of March 31, Increase (decrease)

In thousands 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Engagement Cloud* 107,161 59,357 80.5 %

Operator Cloud 78,503 56,541 38.8 %

Total $ 185,664 $ 115,898 60.2 %

*Engagement Cloud ARR includes Stuzo ARR only in the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Active Sites

As of March 31, Increase (decrease)

In thousands 2024 2023 2024 vs 2023

Engagement Cloud* 92.7 68.1 36.2 %

Operator Cloud 27.0 22.4 20.7 %

*Engagement Cloud active sites includes Stuzo active sites only in the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Within this Quarterly Report, the Company makes reference to adjusted subscription service gross margin, EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net loss, and adjusted diluted
net loss per share which are non-GAAP financial measures. Adjusted subscription service gross margin represents subscription service gross margin adjusted to exclude amortization
from acquired and internally developed software. EBITDA represents net loss before income taxes, interest expense and depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA represents
EBITDA as adjusted to exclude certain non-cash and non-recurring charges, including stock-based compensation, acquisition expenses, certain pending litigation expenses and other
non-recurring charges that may not be indicative of our financial performance. Adjusted net loss and adjusted diluted net loss per share represents net loss and net loss per share
excluding amortization of acquired intangible assets, certain non-cash and non-recurring charges, including stock-based compensation, acquisition expense, certain pending litigation
expenses and other non-recurring charges that may not be indicative of our financial performance.
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The Company is presenting adjusted subscription service gross margin, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net loss, and adjusted diluted net loss per share because we believe that
these financial measures provide supplemental information that may be useful to investors in evaluating the Company's core business operating results and comparing such results to
other similar companies. Management believes that adjusted subscription service gross margin, EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net loss, and adjusted diluted net loss per share,
when viewed with the Company's results of operations in accordance with GAAP and the reconciliations to the most directly comparable GAAP measures provided in the tables below
(refer to "Gross margin" discussion above for a reconciliation of subscription service gross margin to adjusted subscription service gross margin), provide useful information about
operating performance and period-over-period growth, and provide additional information that is useful for evaluating the operating performance of the Company's core business without
regard to potential distortions. Management also believes that adjusted EBITDA provides investors with insight into factors and trends that could affect the Company's ongoing cash
earnings, from which capital investments are made and debt is serviced.

The Company's results of operations are impacted by certain non-cash and non-recurring charges, including stock-based compensation, acquisition related expenditures, and
other non-recurring charges that may not be indicative of the Company’s on-going or long-term financial performance. Management believes that adjusting its net loss and diluted net
loss per share to remove non-recurring charges provides a useful perspective with respect to the Company's results of operations and provides supplemental information to both
management and investors by removing items that are difficult to predict and are often unanticipated.

Adjusted subscription service gross margin, EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, adjusted net loss, and adjusted diluted net loss per share are not measures of financial performance
under GAAP and should not be considered as alternatives to subscription service gross margin or net income (loss) as indicators of operating performance. Additionally, these measures
may not be comparable to similarly titled measures disclosed by other companies. The tables below provide reconciliations between net loss and EBITDA, adjusted EBITDA, and
adjusted net loss, as well as between diluted net loss per share and adjusted diluted net loss per share.

Three Months Ended March 31,

in thousands 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Net Loss to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA

Net loss $ (18,288) $ (15,905)

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (7,785) 315 

Interest expense, net 1,708 1,667 

Depreciation and amortization 7,226 6,933 

EBITDA $ (17,139) $ (6,990)

Stock-based compensation expense (1) 4,410 3,055 

Contingent consideration (2) — (5,200)

Transaction costs (3) 4,412 — 

Severance (4) 1,434 253 

Other (income) expense, net (5) (306) 59 

Adjusted EBITDA $ (7,189) $ (8,823)

1 Adjustments reflect stock-based compensation expense of $4.4 million and $3.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

2 Adjustment reflects a non-cash reduction to the fair market value of the contingent consideration liability related to the MENU Acquisition.

3 Adjustment reflects non-recurring professional fees incurred in transaction due diligence, including acquisition costs associated with the Stuzo Acquisition and costs incurred with the planned acquisition of TASK.

4 Adjustment reflects the severance included in cost of sales, sales and marketing expense, general and administrative expense, and research and development expense of $1.4 million and $0.3 million for the three

months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

5 Adjustment reflects foreign currency transaction gains and losses, rental income and losses, and other non-recurring expenses recorded in other (income) expense, net, in the accompanying statements of

operations.
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in thousands, except per share amounts Three Months Ended March 31,

Reconciliation of Net Loss/Diluted Net Loss per Share to Adjusted Net Loss/Adjusted Diluted Net Loss
per Share: 2024 2023

Net loss/diluted net loss per share $ (18,288) $ (0.62) $ (15,905) $ (0.58)

Benefit from income taxes (1) (8,105) (0.27) — — 

Non-cash interest expense (2) 508 0.02 522 0.02 

Acquired intangible assets amortization (3) 5,167 0.18 4,564 0.17 

Stock-based compensation expense (4) 4,410 0.15 3,055 0.11 

Contingent consideration (5) — — (5,200) (0.19)

Transaction costs (6) 4,412 0.15 — — 

Severance (7) 1,434 0.05 253 0.01 

Other (income) expense, net (8) (306) (0.01) 59 — 

Adjusted net loss/adjusted diluted net loss per share $ (10,768) $ (0.36) $ (12,652) $ (0.46)

Adjusted weighted average common shares outstanding 29,516 27,344 

1 Adjustment reflects a partial release of our deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $8.1 million resulting from the Stuzo Acquisition. The income tax effect of the below adjustments were not tax-effected due to

the valuation allowance on all of our net deferred tax assets.

2 Adjustment reflects non-cash amortization of issuance costs related to the Company's long-term debt of $0.5 million and $0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

3 Adjustment reflects amortization expense of acquired developed technology included within cost of sales of $4.3 million and $4.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively; and

amortization expense of acquired intangible assets of $0.9 million and $0.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

4 Adjustment reflects stock-based compensation expense of $4.4 million and $3.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

5 Adjustment reflects a non-cash reduction to the fair market value of the contingent consideration liability related to the MENU Acquisition.

6 Adjustment reflects non-recurring professional fees incurred in transaction due diligence, including acquisition costs associated with the Stuzo Acquisition and costs incurred with the planned acquisition of TASK.

7 Adjustment reflects the severance included in cost of sales, sales and marketing expense, general and administrative expense, and research and development expense of $1.4 million and $0.3 million for the three

months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

8 Adjustment reflects foreign currency transaction gains and losses, rental income and losses, and other non-recurring expenses recorded in other (income) expense, net, in the accompanying statements of

operations.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. As of March 31, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents of $50.8 million and short-
term investments of $21.7 million. Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with maturities of 90 days or less, including money market funds. Short-term
investments are held-to-maturity investment securities consisting of investment-grade interest bearing instruments, primarily treasury bills and notes, which are stated at amortized cost.

Cash used in operating activities was $23.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to $16.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023 . Cash
used for the three months ended March 31, 2024 was substantially driven by a net loss from operations of $18.3 million, net of non-cash charges of $4.4 million, and additional net
working capital requirements substantially driven by an increase in accounts receivable of $5.1 million resulting from revenue growth.

Cash used in investing activities was $151.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to $1.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2023. Investing
activities during the three months ended March 31, 2024 included $166.3 million of cash consideration in connection with the Stuzo Acquisition (net of cash acquired), capital
expenditures of $1.4 million for developed technology costs associated with our Restaurant/Retail software platforms, partially off-set by $15.9 million of proceeds from net sales of short-
term held-to-maturity investments.

Cash provided by financing activities was $190.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to cash used in financing activities of $2.4 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2023. Cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2024 was substantially driven by a private placement of common stock of
$194.5 million (net of issuance costs), refer to "Note 8 – Common Stock" of the notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements in "Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data" of this Quarterly Report for additional information. We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements or obligations.

We expect our available cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our operating needs for at least the next 12 months. Over the next 12 months our total contractual
obligations are $31.4 million, consisting of purchase commitments for normal operations (purchase of inventory, software licensing, use of external labor, and third-party cloud services)
of $22.8 million, principal and interest payments on long-term debt of $7.4 million and facility lease obligations of $1.2 million. We expect to fund such commitments with cash provided by
operating activities and our sources of liquidity.

Our non-current contractual obligations are $410.2 million, consisting of purchase commitments for normal operations (purchase of inventory, software licensing, use of external
labor, and third-party cloud services) of $8.3 million, interest payments of $13.7 million and principal payments of $385.0 million related to long-term debt, and facility leases of $3.0
million. Refer to “Note 7 – Debt” of the notes to interim condensed consolidated financial statements in "Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" of this Quarterly
Report for additional information.

Our actual cash needs will depend on many factors, including our rate of revenue growth, growth of our SaaS revenues, the timing and extent of spending to support our product
development and acquisition integration efforts, the timing of introductions of new products and enhancements to existing products, market acceptance of our products, and the factors
described above in this "Part I, Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and in the 2023
Annual Report and our other filings with the SEC.

From time to time, we may seek to raise additional capital through equity, equity-linked, and debt financing arrangements. In addition, our board of directors and management
regularly evaluate our business, strategy, and financial plans and prospects. As part of this evaluation, the board of directors and management periodically consider strategic alternatives
to maximize value for our shareholders, including strategic transactions such as an acquisition, or a sale or spin-off of non-strategic company assets or businesses, including a sale of
PAR Government Systems Corporation and/or one or more of its subsidiaries. We cannot provide assurance that any additional financing or strategic alternatives will be available to us
on acceptable terms or at all.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our financial statements are based on the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. GAAP requires the use of estimates,
assumptions, judgments and subjective interpretations of accounting principles that have an impact on the assets, liabilities, revenue, and expense amounts reported. We believe our
use of estimates and underlying accounting assumptions adhere to GAAP and are consistently applied. Valuations based on estimates are reviewed for reasonableness and adequacy
on a consistent basis. Significant items subject to these estimates and assumptions include revenue recognition, stock-based compensation, the recognition and measurement of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations at fair value, the carrying amount of property, plant, and equipment including right-to-use assets and liabilities, identifiable
intangible assets and goodwill, valuation allowances for receivables, valuation of excess and obsolete inventories, and measurement of contingent consideration at fair value. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Our estimates are subject to uncertainties, including those associated with market conditions, risks and trends. Refer to "Part II, Item 1A. Risk
Factors" of this Quarterly Report for additional information. Our critical accounting policies have not changed materially from the discussion of those policies included under “Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates” in our 2023 Annual Report.

Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our primary exposures relate to certain non-dollar denominated sales and operating expenses in Canada, Europe, Asia, and Australia. These primary currencies are the Great
British Pound, the Euro, the Swiss Franc, the Serbian Dinar, the Australian dollar, the Singapore dollar, the Canadian dollar, the Indian Rupee and the Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly,
changes in exchange rates may negatively affect our revenue and net income (loss) as expressed in U.S. dollars. We also have foreign currency risk related to foreign currency
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities, including intercompany balances denominated in currencies that are not the functional currency. We have experienced and will continue
to experience fluctuations in our net income (loss) as a result of gains (losses) on these foreign currency transactions and the remeasurement of monetary assets and liabilities. As of
March 31, 2024, the impact of foreign currency exchange rate changes on our revenues and net income (loss) was not material. The volatility of exchange rates depends on many
factors that we cannot forecast with reliable accuracy.

Interest Rate Risk

As of March 31, 2024, we had $120.0 million, and $265.0 million in aggregate principal amount outstanding on the 2026 Notes and the 2027 Notes, respectively.

We carry the long-term debt at face value less amortized debt issuance costs on the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Since the long-term debt bears interest at fixed
rates, we have no financial statement risk associated with changes in interest rates. However, the fair value of the long-term debt changes when the market price of our common stock
fluctuates or interest rates change.
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Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of March 31, 2024. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2024.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, did not identify changes that occurred in our internal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2024, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Part II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information in “Note 11 – Commitments and Contingencies” of the notes to the financial statements "Part I, Item 1. Financial Statements" is incorporated herein by
reference. We do not believe that we have any pending litigation that would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The risks described in the “Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors” section of our 2023 Annual Report could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of
operations, and the trading price of our common stock could decline. The Risk Factors section in our 2023 Annual Report remains current in all material respects. Refer also to the other
information set forth in this Quarterly Report, including in the Forward-Looking Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and
Financial Statements sections.

Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Under our equity incentive plan, employees may elect to have us withhold shares to satisfy minimum statutory federal, state and local tax withholding obligations arising from the
vesting of their restricted stock and restricted stock units. When we withhold these shares, we are required to remit to the appropriate taxing authorities the market price of the shares
withheld, which could be deemed a purchase of shares by us on the date of withholding. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, 108,890 shares were withheld.

The table below presents information regarding the Company's purchases of its common stock for the time periods presented.

Period Total Number of Shares Withheld Average Price Paid Per Share

January 1, 2024 - January 31, 2024 — $ — 

February 1, 2024 - February 29, 2024 27,484 $ 48.69 

March 1, 2024 - March 31, 2024 81,406 $ 43.01 

Total 108,890 $ 44.45 

Item 5. OTHER INFORMATION

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, none of the Company’s directors or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act) adopted , modified, or terminated
a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or “non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” (as defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K).
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Item 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number

 
Incorporated by reference into

this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q  
Date

Filed or
FurnishedExhibit Description Form Exhibit No.

2.1

Purchase Agreement, dated March 8, 2024, PAR Technology Corporation,
ParTech, Inc., the persons identified as Company Sellers on the signature
pages thereto, Longshore Capital Fund I, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership,
and Longshore Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company, in its capacity as the Seller Representative.

Form 8-K (File No.001-
09720)

2.1 3/11/2024

2.2
Scheme Implementation Agreement, dated March 9, 2024, by and between
PAR Technology Corporation and TASK Group Holdings Limited.

Form 8-K (File No.001-
09720)

2.2 3/11/2024

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as currently in effect
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-
09720)

3.1 11/9/2022

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws, as currently in effect
Form 8-K (File No.001-
09720)

3.1 2/14/2024

10.1 Separation Letter, dated February 9, 2024, to Raju Malhotra Filed herewith

10.2
Securities Purchase Agreement, dated March 7, 2024, between PAR
Technology Corporation and the purchasers identified therein.

Form 8-K (File No.001-
09720)

10.1 3/11/2024

10.3
Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 8, 2024, between PAR
Technology Corporation and the purchasers identified therein.

Form 8-K (File No.001-
09720)

10.2 3/11/2024

10.4
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Employment Letter between PAR
Technology Corporation and Savneet Singh, dated March 25, 2024

Form 8-K (File No.001-
09720)

10.1 3/28/2024

31.1
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

Filed herewith

31.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

Filed herewith

32.1
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Furnished herewith

32.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Furnished herewith

101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document Filed herewith

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document Filed herewith

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document Filed herewith

101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Filed herewith

101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document Filed herewith

101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document Filed herewith

104
Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL
document)

Filed herewith
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file:///tmp/T5706/21ba7b52-2eb2-4dcd-a4fc-c965a156a947/a10qexhibit322-q12024.htm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

 PAR TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

 (Registrant)

  

Date: May 9, 2024 /s/ Bryan A. Menar

 Bryan A. Menar

 Chief Financial Officer

 (Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1 Certain information identified by “[***]” has been excluded from this exhibit because it is both not material and is the type of information that the registrant customarily and actually treats as private or confidential. February 9, 2024 Raju Malhotra [***] Dear Raju: The purpose of this letter (“Letter”) is to summarize our discussions with you on February 8, 2024 regarding the separation of your employment with PAR Technology Corporation (the “Company”) effective February 9, 2024 (the “Separation Date”). Your final wages through and including the Separation Date will be paid on the Separation Date, and direct deposited into your account(s). In addition to your post-employment payment/benefits described under Benefit Plans below, in consideration of the Company’s receipt of your fully executed and effective Release (“Release”) attached to this Letter, and provided you do not revoke the Release as explained below, the Company will: (a) pay you the sum of $138,666.67 (equal to four (4) months’ pay) which will be paid in four (4) equal installments over a period of 4 (four) months commencing within 60 days of your Separation Date subject to the Company’s receipt of your fully executed and effective Release; and (b) pay you an amount equal to the earned but unpaid annual short-term incentive (STI) cash bonus (“STI Bonus”) with respect to the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (“FY 2023”) without regard to any continued employment requirement, which shall be paid to you upon the later of: (i) the date STI bonuses for the FY 2023 are paid to other executive officers of the Company and (ii) the date the Company shall have received your fully executed and effective Release; provided, in no event, later than 5:00 p.m. (eastern time) on April 1, 2024; and (c) amend the Grant Notice - Restricted Stock Unit Award and Restricted Stock Award Agreement (the “August 2021 Grant Agreement”) reflective of an August 12, 2021 grant date of performance vesting restricted stock units of 1,578 units (“2021 RSUs), to provide that notwithstanding you not being employed by or otherwise providing services to the Company or any of its affiliates on March 1, 2024 (the Vesting Date of one-third of the 2021 RSUs, representing 526 (the “2021 Third Year Vesting RSUs”) under the August 2021 Grant Agreement), you will vest in the 2021 Third Year Vesting RSUs on the later of: (i) March 1,

2024 and (ii) the date the Company shall have received your fully executed and effective Release provided, in no event, later than 5:00 p.m. (eastern time) on April 1, 2024; as amended pursuant to the amendment in the form attached to this letter as Appendix A; and



 

(d) amend the Grant Notice - Restricted Stock Unit Award and Restricted Stock Award Agreement (“March 2022 Grant Agreement”) reflective of a March 4, 2022 grant date of time vesting restricted stock units of 39,123 units (“2022 RSUs”), to provide that notwithstanding you not being employed by or otherwise providing services to the Company or any of its affiliates on March 1, 2024 (the Vesting Date of one third of the 2022 RSUs, representing 13,041 units (the “2022 Second Year Vesting RSUs”) under the March 2022 Grant Agreement), you shall vest in the 2022 Second Year Vesting RSUs on the later of: (i) March 1, 2024 and (ii) the date the Company shall have received your fully executed and effective Release; provided, in no event, later than 5:00 p.m. (eastern time) on April 1, 2024; as amended pursuant to the amendment in the form attached to this letter as Appendix B; and (e) amend the Grant Notice - Restricted Stock Unit Award and Restricted Stock Award Agreement (“March 2023 Grant Agreement”) reflective of an March 3, 2023 grant date of time vesting restricted stock units of 41,876 units (“2023 RSUs”), to provide that notwithstanding you not being employed by or otherwise providing services to the Company or any of its affiliates on March 1, 2024 (the Vesting Date of one third of the 2023 RSUs, representing 13,959 units (the “2023 First Year Vesting RSUs”) under the March 2023 Grant Agreement), you shall vest in the 2023 First Year Vesting RSUs on the later of: (i) March 1, 2024 and (ii) the date the Company shall have received your fully executed and effective Release; provided, in no event, later than 5:00 p.m. (eastern time) on April 1, 2024; as amended pursuant to the amendment in the form attached to this letter as Appendix C; and (f) amend the Notice of Award/Stock Option Agreement (Non-Qualified Stock Option) (“January 2021 NQSO Grant Agreement”) reflective of a January 1, 2021 grant date of non-qualified stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock (“NQSOs”) to provide that notwithstanding you not being employed by or otherwise providing services to the Company or any of its affiliates on February 17, 2024 (the Vesting Date of 1,315 unvested shares of the NQSOs) and March 17, 2024 (the Vesting Date of 1,315 unvested shares of the NQSOs) (collectively, the “2024 Vesting NQSOs”) under the January 2021 NQSO Grant Agreement,

you shall vest in the 2024 Vesting NQSOs on the later of: (i) February 17, 2024 (1,315 shares) or March 17, 2024 (1,315 shares), as applicable, and (ii) the date the Company shall have received your fully executed and effective Release; provided, in no event, later than 5:00 p.m. (eastern time) on April 1, 2024; as amended pursuant to the amendment in the form attached to this letter as Appendix D; and (g) amend the Notice of Award/Stock Option Agreement (Incentive Stock Option) (“January 2021 ISO Grant Agreement”) reflective of a January 1, 2021 grant date of incentive stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock (“ISOs”) to provide that notwithstanding you not being employed by or otherwise providing services to the Company or any of its affiliates on February 17, 2024 (the Vesting Date of 840 unvested shares of the ISOs) and March 17, 2024 (the Vesting Date of 841 unvested shares of the ISOs) (collectively, the “2024 Vesting ISOs”) under the January 2021 ISO Grant Agreement, you shall vest in the 2024 Vesting ISOs on the later of: (i) February 17, 2024 (840 shares) or March 17, 2024 (841 shares), as applicable, and (ii) the date the Company shall have received your fully executed and effective Release; provided, in no event, later than 5:00 p.m. (eastern time) on April 1, 2024; as amended pursuant to the amendment in the form attached to this letter as Appendix E; and



 

(h) provided you timely elect COBRA coverage for your medical benefits (as described under Benefit Plans – Medical below), pay the same amount as the Company currently pays toward your medical benefits (employer portion) toward such COBRA coverage for a period of two (2) months beginning March 1, 2024; and (i) provide you with outplacement services through Lee Hecht Harrison for a period of up to three (3) months, provided you engage with Lee Hecht Harrison no later than May 8, 2024. You may not receive cash in lieu of outplacement services. Collectively, (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h) and (i) above, the “Separation Payments”. Your Release will be deemed “effective” upon the expiration of the Revocation Period (as that term is defined in the Release) provided you do not exercise your right to revoke your Release during the Revocation Period. Whether or not you sign the Release, you will be entitled to the following in connection with the Company’s Benefit Plans: Benefit Plans: Vacation. You will receive payment for your earned, unused vacation hours (if any) recorded as of the Separation Date. Medical, Dental, and Vision Insurance. Your medical, dental, and vision insurance will continue through February 29, 2024. A separate letter detailing your ability to continue coverage at your own expense pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), together with a certificate as it relates to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, will be mailed to you by [***], within the next few weeks. Life Insurance. Group Life insurance coverage with The Hartford will cease as of the Separation Date. You have 31 days after your group life insurance coverage ends and upon receiving the notice to convert to a personal policy. If you choose to convert to a personal policy within this 31-day period, The Hartford will not require proof of insurability. If you need a form to exercise your conversion rights, please reach out to [***] within two (2) weeks of receiving this letter to request a copy of your personalized form which you will be required to submit to The Hartford. Premiums for a Life Conversion policy are substantially higher than the employer group policy rates. Disability Insurance. Disability Insurance coverage will cease on the Separation Date. 401(k) Plan. Information regarding your distribution rights with respect to your

vested benefits under the PAR Technology Corporation 401(k) Plan will be sent to you from the Company’s 401(k) Plan Administrator. PAR Equity/Stock. Except for amendments to your unvested equity grants which are included in the Separation Payments described above, on the Separation Date, all other unvested



 

equity awards granted to you by PAR Technology Corporation shall be automatically cancelled without payment of any consideration by the Company. If you were awarded stock options, you will have three months following the Separation Date to exercise any stock options that are vested as of the Separation Date, otherwise the vested stock options will automatically expire without value. To avoid forfeiture of any vested stock options, contact [***] to process any required paperwork related to your separation. All payments made to you under this Letter and/or the Release will have all applicable federal, state, and/or local tax withholding, F.I.C.A., and any other applicable deductions or other taxes withheld or subtracted therefrom as required by law. To the extent that there may be tax consequences related to such payments, you are solely responsible. Confidential Information and Company Property. Notwithstanding that your employment has been terminated, you remain subject to the terms of any written confidentiality, non-disclosure and/or non-solicitation covenants or agreements with the Company. Even in the absence of any written agreement, you remain legally obligated not to use or disclose the Company’s confidential information. Further, you are under an obligation to return all Company property that is within your possession, access, or control, including (without limitation) all Company confidential information, files, data, passwords, keys, access cards, identification badges, cell phones, computers and computer equipment, other electronic devices, and security devices or tokens that permit access to the Company’s facilities or systems. Sincerely, /s/ Candice Levy Candice Levy SVP, Human Resources



 

Release Release This Release (“Release”) is given and made by Raju Malhotra (“R. Malhotra”) to PAR Technology Corporation (the “Company”). Background: On February 9, 2024 (“Separation Date”), R. Malhotra’s employment with the Company was severed. In consideration of a fully executed and effective Release, the Company will provide R. Malhotra the Separation Payments described in the letter of separation dated February 9, 2024 (to which this Release is attached (the “Letter”)). This Release will be deemed “effective” upon the expiration of the Revocation Period (as such term is defined in Section 16 of this Release), during which time R. Malhotra does not exercise his right to revoke thereunder. NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth in this Release, the Letter, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and as to which R. Malhotra would not have been entitled to receive without the execution and effectiveness of this Release, the Company and R. Malhotra agree as follows: 1. Release. In consideration of the Separation Payments and other payments or benefits under the Letter or hereunder (collectively, “other Release Consideration”), R. Malhotra does for himself and for each of his agents, representatives, attorneys, successors, assigns, spouse, heirs, beneficiaries, legal guardians, executors, and administrators fully release and discharge each of the Released Parties (as herein defined) from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, actions, causes of action, suits, grievances, debts, and remedies of any and all types, in law or in equity, which R. Malhotra ever had, now has, or hereafter can, shall, or may have against any of the Released Parties, for or by reason of any matter, thing, or cause whatsoever, whether known or unknown, matured or not matured, arising on or before the date R. Malhotra signed this Release, including all claims arising or that arose, are related to, resulted from or occurred in connection with R. Malhotra’s employment with the Company and/or R. Malhotra’s separation of employment from the Company, and including all claims, actions or liability under: • the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended by the Older Worker’s Benefit Protection Act (the “OWBPA” and collectively, the “ADEA”), Title VII of the Civil Rights

Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Civil Rights Act of 1866 (42 U.S.C. §1981 et. al.), the Americans with Disabilities Act, the National Labor Relations Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Occupational Safety and Health Act, the federal and state Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act(s), the Genetic Information Non-Discrimination Act, the Food Safety Modernization Act and/or the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, all as amended;



 

• wrongful termination in violation of public policy (Tameny claims), breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, privacy violations, defamation, intentional infliction of emotional distress, retaliation, discrimination and harassment claims under California's Fair Employment and Housing Act, California Labor Code, the California Constitution, the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), the California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA), and any and all claims based on federal, state, provincial, municipal, or local employment discrimination statutes, laws, regulations, or ordinances, including, but not limited to age, sex, race, religion, national origin, marital status, sexual orientation, ancestry, parental status, handicap, disability, veteran status, harassment, retaliation, attainment of benefit plan rights, claims for severance pay, claims based on breach of contract, notice, compensation in lieu of notice, wrongful termination, defamation, intentional infliction of emotional distress, tort, personal injury, invasion of privacy, violation of public policy, negligence or any common law, statutory, or other claim whatsoever arising out of or relating to employment with or separation from employment with the employer, regardless of the jurisdiction in which such statute, law, regulation or ordinance is effective, all as amended; • any other federal, state, or local statute, ordinance, rule or regulation, including but not limited to, those regarding employment, civil rights, compensation, employee benefits, termination of employment, or discrimination or retaliation in employment, all as amended; and • the common law of any state relating to claims for breach of employment contracts (whether oral, written, or implied), breach of promise, wrongful discharge or unjust dismissal, constructive discharge, wrongful dismissal, wrongful termination, retaliation, defamation or injury to reputation, intentional or negligent infliction of emotional distress, humiliation, pain and suffering, harassment, whistleblower claims, back pay, front pay, overtime, severance pay (other than as provided in this Release and the Letter), pension or retirement contributions, interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, compensatory or punitive damages, or injunctive relief, or regarding any other matter; except that nothing contained in this Section 1 or the Letter shall constitute a release of R. Malhotra’s right to enforce his

rights under the terms of this Release or the Letter. R. Malhotra further waives the provisions of Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which states: “A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor or the releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the release, and that if known by him or her would have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released party”. This Release does not release claims that cannot be released as a matter of law, such as claims for workers’ compensation benefits, unemployment insurance benefits and statutory indemnity and any indemnification rights and rights to defense provided to similarly situated employees of the Company under the Company’s bylaws then in effect. This Release is intended to be as complete and inclusive as may be permitted under law with respect to claims in any way arising from or related to R. Malhotra’s employment with the Company and R. Malhotra’s separation from employment with the Company. Notwithstanding the language set forth in this



 

Section 1 or elsewhere in this Release, R. Malhotra understands that although R. Malhotra waives any substantive claims that R. Malhotra may have by virtue of this Release, this Release does not affect R. Malhotra’s right to sue solely to challenge the validity of the ADEA waiver, to the extent permitted by law. Moreover, if R. Malhotra challenges the validity of this Release of the Company herein as inconsistent with the OWBPA, this Release does not first require R. Malhotra to give back any payment(s) received by R. Malhotra pursuant to the Letter or in furtherance of this Release. For purposes of this Release, “Released Parties” means (all, one or more of the following, as the circumstances may provide): (a) the Company; (b) the Company’s current, former, and future directors (or comparable office), officers, shareholders, owners, members, managers, employees, advisors, representatives, and agents; (c) the Company’s related corporate and non- corporate entities and business units, divisions, parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates, currently existing or existing during the term of this Release (collectively referred to in this Agreement as “Affiliates”); (d) each Affiliate’s current, former, and future directors (or comparable office), officers, shareholders, owners, members, managers, general partners, limited partners, employees, advisors, representatives, and agents; (e) each of the Company’s and Affiliate’s respective employee benefit and/or pension plans (and their respective sponsors, fiduciaries, or administrators), insurers, and attorneys; and (f) each of the Company’s and the Affiliates’ respective successors and assigns. 2. Covenant Not to Sue. R. Malhotra affirms that he has not filed, has not caused to be filed, and/or presently is not a party to any claim against any of the Released Parties. R. Malhotra also represents and warrants that there has been no assignment or other transfer of any interest in any claim by him that is covered by the Release set forth in Section 1 of this Release. Except for an action arising out of a breach of the terms of the Letter, this Release (including payment of the Separation Payments), or an action brought solely to challenge the validity of the release of ADEA claims contained in Section 1, (to the extent permitted by law) of this Release, R. Malhotra agrees never to bring (or cause to be brought) or participate in any suit against any of the Released Parties regarding any

act or failure to act that occurred up to and including the date on which R. Malhotra signs this Release to the extent that it involves a claim released under Section 1 of this Release. Despite the above, nothing in this Release shall be interpreted to prohibit or prevent R. Malhotra from filing a charge or complaint with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) or with any other federal, state, or local governmental agency or commission (each a “Government Agency”) or from otherwise participating, testifying or assisting in any EEOC or other Government Agency investigation, hearing, or proceeding to the extent such right is protected under the law and cannot legally be waived by contract. However, to the maximum extent permitted by law, R. Malhotra agrees he is not entitled to recover any individual monetary relief or other individual remedies arising from any such participation, assistance, testimony, communication or filing with the EEOC or other Government Agency; provided, however, this Release does not limit or prohibit R. Malhotra’s right to receive an award for information provided to the EEOC or other Government Agency to the extent such limitation or prohibition is a violation of law. Further, nothing in this Release is intended to and shall not be interpreted to prohibit, prevent, or otherwise impede R. Malhotra from communicating, without notice to or



 

approval of the Company and/or Released Parties, with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) about a possible violation of the Federal securities laws (including any rules or regulations thereunder) or from otherwise participating, testifying, or assisting in any SEC investigation, hearing, or proceeding. In addition, nothing herein requires R. Malhotra to waive any monetary recovery awarded pursuant to Rule 21F-17 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended. 3. Notice Regarding Subpoenas. R. Malhotra agrees that if R. Malhotra is required by law or regulation or through a lawful subpoena or similar process ordered to give testimony or provide assistance in any suit or investigation involving one or more of the Released Parties, R. Malhotra will give (to the fullest extent not prohibited by law) the Company prompt notice of the order or subpoena in advance of R. Malhotra’s response to the same, and will allow the Company and/or the Released Parties a reasonable amount of time to challenge the order or subpoena in court. 4. Acknowledgment of Compensation Paid. R. Malhotra acknowledges and agrees that R. Malhotra has received all compensation R. Malhotra is owed for R. Malhotra’s services as an employee of the Company, including any services provided to any Affiliate, up to and including the date R. Malhotra executes this Release and, with the exception of the payments under the Letter and this Release (including the Separation Payments), R. Malhotra agrees not to make any claims for further compensation of any type, including claims for wages or salary, bonus payments, incentive compensation (in cash, equity, or other property), commission payments, residuals, costs, professional membership or dues, pension or retirement contributions or benefits, sick pay, holiday pay, business expenses, vacation pay, severance, or any enhancements to salary, all of which such claims are covered by the Release set forth in Section 1 of this Release. 5. Return of Company Property and Information. R. Malhotra agrees to promptly (but not later than the date R. Malhotra delivers this executed Release to the Company) return to the Company or to any Affiliate, as applicable, all property belonging to the Company and/or to any Affiliate that is within R. Malhotra’s possession, access or control, including all Confidential Information (as such term is defined

in this Release or the NDA (as defined in Section 8 below)), documents (in tangible or non-tangible form), files, charts, lists, photographs, recordings, data, passwords, keys, access cards, identification badges, business cards, cell phones, pagers, personal digital assistants, smart phones, computers and computer equipment, other electronic devices, and security devices or tokens that permit access to the Company’s and/or to any Affiliates’ facilities or systems. R. Malhotra acknowledges that he is prohibited from making or keeping copies of any of the foregoing items/things, in whole or in part, and that this prohibition includes downloading, transferring and/or retaining any electronic files or portions thereof; and R. Malhotra represents that he has neither retained copies nor has he disclosed or otherwise shared the contents of any of the foregoing items/things with any third party. R. Malhotra agrees that any and all inventions, developments, discoveries and/or works that he created, made or prepared while employed by the Company (“Work Product”) are deemed to be created, made and prepared in the course of and within the scope of R. Malhotra’s employment with the Company and are exclusively owned by the Company and R. Malhotra hereby assigns his rights, title and interest in any Work Product to the Company; provided, however, R. Malhotra’s obligations hereunder are



 

subject to the Defend Trade Secrets Act of 2016; and, in accordance with that Act, R. Malhotra will not be held criminally or civilly liable under any federal or state trade secret law for the disclosure of a trade secret that (a) is made (i) in confidence to a federal, state, or local government official, either directly or indirectly, or to an attorney; and (ii) solely for the purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law; or (b) is made in a complaint or other document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, if such filing is made under seal. Accordingly, R. Malhotra has the right to disclose in confidence trade secrets to federal, state, and local government officials, or to an attorney, for the sole purpose of reporting or investigating a suspected violation of law. R. Malhotra also has the right to disclose trade secrets in a document filed in a lawsuit or other proceeding, but only if the filing is made under seal and protected from public disclosure. 6. Confidentiality of this Release\Non-Solicitation. (a) R. Malhotra agrees that R. Malhotra will not (without the prior written consent of the Company) in any manner communicate the existence, substance, or terms and provisions of this Release to any other person or entity except: (i) as may be specifically required by law; (ii) to R. Malhotra’s accountant and/or financial advisor to the extent necessary to prepare R. Malhotra’s tax returns or to advise R. Malhotra in connection with the tax consequences of the Separation Payments; (iii) to R. Malhotra’s attorney(s); and (iv) to R. Malhotra’s spouse (the persons or entities in (ii), (iii), and/or (iv), “Authorized Person(s)”). R. Malhotra further agrees that before R. Malhotra makes any such authorized disclosure to an Authorized Person(s), R. Malhotra will first inform such Authorized Person(s) that the existence and terms of this Release are confidential, and R. Malhotra will secure the agreement of each such person to maintain the confidentiality of the existence, terms, and provisions of this Release. R. Malhotra agrees that in the event R. Malhotra is required to disclose this Release pursuant to a government order or subpoena, R. Malhotra will give (to the fullest extent not prohibited by law) the Company prompt notice of the order or subpoena in advance of R. Malhotra’s response to the same, and will allow the Company a reasonable amount of time to challenge the order or subpoena in a

court of competent jurisdiction before disclosing this Release and/or its terms and provisions. R. Malhotra specifically acknowledges that, except as described above, this confidentiality provision prohibits R. Malhotra from discussing the existence of this Release, its substance, or terms and provisions with any person (other than those individuals specifically excepted by this Section 6 (subject to the requirements of this Section 6), including any current or former employee of the Company or of its Affiliates (other than those employees of the Company who are responsible for consummating and implementing this Release and the Letter for and on behalf of the Company)) or with any media, and that R. Malhotra may not post or disclose any information about the existence, substance, or terms and provisions of this Release in any manner including but not limited to on the Internet, on Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, TikTok and on any other social media site, blog, or other electronic medium of any kind. (b) In addition, for a period of 12 months from the date the Company receives this fully executed and effective Release, R. Malhotra will not, directly or indirectly, in any manner, for R. Malhotra’s own business or for any other person or business (i) solicit, recruit (or attempt



 

to recruit), discuss with or advise, influence, induce or otherwise encourage in any way, any employee of the Company or of any Affiliate to terminate such employee’s relationship with the Company or with any Affiliate for any reason, or (to the extent permitted by applicable law) hire (or attempt to hire) any such employee; (ii) solicit, hire or recruit or attempt to hire or recruit any person who was an employee of the Company or of any Affiliate within the immediately preceding six (6) months prior to R. Malhotra’s Separation Date; and/or (iii) solicit, assist, discuss with or advise, influence, induce or otherwise encourage in any way, any customer, vendor, supplier or business associate or prospective customer, vendor, supplier or business associate of the Company or of any Affiliate to cancel, terminate or alter its business relationship with the Company or with any Affiliate. For purposes of subsection (iii) above, reference to “any customer, vendor, supplier or business associate” means any one of the foregoing that are or were customers, vendors, suppliers or business associates of the Company or of any Affiliate as of R. Malhotra’s Separation Date, and reference to “prospective customer”, vendor, supplier, or business associate” means any one of the foregoing that R. Malhotra knew of as of R. Malhotra’s Separation Date. 7. Non-Disparagement. R. Malhotra agrees that he shall not at any time make or encourage others to make any remarks or comments (whether in writing or oral) about the Released Parties, or any of one of them, to any third party (including vendors, suppliers, customers, business associates, regulators, the media, press and/or publications), which remarks or comments reasonably could be construed to be derogatory or disparaging or which reasonably could be anticipated to be damaging or injurious to the reputation or goodwill of a Released Party. R. Malhotra understands and agrees that remarks or comments made on the Internet, on Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, TikTok and on any other social media site, blog, or other electronic medium of any kind are subject to the provisions of this Section 7 in the same manner as remarks or comments made in any other forum. Nothing in this Release prevents R. Malhotra from discussing or disclosing information about unlawful acts in the workplace, such as harassment or discrimination or any other conduct that R. Malhotra

has reason to believe is unlawful. 8. Confidential Information. R. Malhotra acknowledges and agrees that as a result of and in connection with R. Malhotra’s employment with the Company, R. Malhotra obtained knowledge of and had access to the trade secrets and other proprietary and confidential information of the Company, its Affiliates and of other Released Parties and to information concerning the business, contemplated future business, prospects, and any other affairs of the Company, its Affiliates and/or other Released Parties that the Company, its Affiliates and/or other Released Parties regard as confidential, proprietary, or private in nature (the foregoing hereinafter, collectively “Confidential Information”). Examples of such Confidential Information include but are not limited to, the Company’s corporate plans, strategies and prospects, financial information, product developments, marketing, advertising and sales plans, product and service pricing and pricing policies and strategies and employee, customer, vendor and supplier information. R. Malhotra agrees not to disclose, in whole or in part, any Confidential Information to any person or entity for any reason or purpose whatsoever or make use of any such Confidential Information for R. Malhotra’s own purpose or for the benefit or use of any person or entity in any way. R. Malhotra specifically acknowledges and agrees that R. Malhotra’s unauthorized disclosure or use of the Company’s Confidential Information at any time would irreparably



 

damage the Company, its Affiliates or other Released Parties. R. Malhotra further confirms that R. Malhotra has not, at any time prior to the date R. Malhotra signs this Release, disclosed, in whole or in part, any Confidential Information to any person or entity, or otherwise engaged in any of the above listed prohibited activities or conduct. To the extent R. Malhotra signed and delivered a confidentiality or non-disclosure agreement (“NDA”) in connection with his employment with the Company, the terms of that agreement are incorporated into and are made a part of this Release. However, in the event of any conflict between R. Malhotra’s obligations under this Release and the NDA, the terms that are enforceable and most protective of the Company and its Affiliates will govern. R. Malhotra acknowledges and agrees that, consistent with applicable law, at no time will R. Malhotra be permitted to utilize the Company’s and/or its Affiliate’s trade secrets or other protected Confidential Information. 9. Entire Agreement. This Release (together with the Letter and the NDA) contains the entire agreement and understanding between R. Malhotra and the Company concerning the matters described herein (and therein) and replaces all prior agreements (except the Letter and the NDA), discussions, negotiations, understandings, and proposals of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof (and thereof). 10. Injunctive Relief and Other Remedies. R. Malhotra acknowledges and agrees that it is impossible to measure in money the damages that will accrue to the Company and/or its Affiliates in the event that R. Malhotra breaches, or threatens to commit a breach of, any of the restrictive covenants set forth in Section 2, Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Release, and that any such damages, in any event, would be inadequate and insufficient. Therefore, if R. Malhotra breaches, or threatens to commit a breach of, any such restrictive covenants, the Company or any of its Affiliates, as appropriate, shall have, in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights and remedies available to it or them under law and in equity, the right to remedies including: (a) the right to injunctive relief and/or to have the restrictive covenants specifically enforced by a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, without the posting of any bond or other security, all to the fullest extent

not prohibited by law; (b) the right to repayment to the Company of any portion of the Separation Payments already paid to R. Malhotra or on R. Malhotra’s behalf to the fullest extent not prohibited by applicable law (excluding $2,500 in consideration for the Release set forth in Section 1 of this Release); and (c) the right, exercisable by the Company, to cease any payments otherwise due to R. Malhotra or on R. Malhotra’s behalf under this Release. R. Malhotra confirms he has not at any time prior to the date R. Malhotra signs this Release, engaged in any of the prohibited activities or prohibited conduct set forth in Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and Section 8 of this Release. 11. Severability. The provisions of this Release may be separated, and the invalidity of any provision shall not affect the validity of the other provisions. If, however, a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction rules that the release or waiver of claims or rights set forth in Section 1, or the covenants provided for in Section 2, Section 5, Section 6, Section 7 and Section



 

8 of this Release, is or are illegal, void, or unenforceable, R. Malhotra agrees to promptly repay to the Company the Separation Payments and any other payments made to R. Malhotra or on R. Malhotra’s behalf under the Letter or pursuant to this Release to the extent permitted by applicable law (excluding $2,500 in consideration for the Release set forth in Section 1 of this Release). Except to the extent otherwise provided in this Release or that the context otherwise requires, whenever the words “include,” “includes” or “including” are used in this Release, they are deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation”. 12. Modification. No modification, amendment, or waiver of any of the terms contained in this Release, or any future representation, promise, or condition in connection with the subject matter of this Release, shall be binding upon any party to this Release unless made in writing and signed by such party. 13. Choice of Law. This Release will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California without regard to any conflicts of laws principles that would require the laws of any other jurisdiction to apply. 14. Counterparts. This Release may be executed in two or more counterparts, all of which when taken together shall be considered one and the same agreement. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a “.pdf” format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or “.pdf” signature page were an original thereof. 15. Consideration Period (ADEA Compliance). R. Malhotra acknowledges that the Separation Payments given to R. Malhotra or paid on his behalf under the Letter or pursuant to this Release are in addition to anything of value to which R. Malhotra was already entitled. R. Malhotra further acknowledges that before executing this Release, R. Malhotra was given ample time in which to consider this Release and the Summary Information. Specifically, R. Malhotra has been given 45 calendar days to consider this Release and the Summary Information, and R. Malhotra was allowed to use as much of this period as he chose. R. Malhotra acknowledges that: (a) he took advantage of this period to the full extent he deemed it necessary to

consider this Release before executing it; (b) he carefully read this Release; (c) he fully understands this Release; (d) he is entering into this Release voluntarily; (e) he is receiving valuable consideration in exchange for his execution of this Release that R. Malhotra otherwise would not be entitled to receive; and (f) the Company has hereby advised and encouraged R. Malhotra to consult with an attorney prior to signing this Release, and that R. Malhotra had full opportunity to consult with an attorney of his choice, that R. Malhotra did so to the extent he deemed appropriate, and that any attorney R. Malhotra consulted had a full opportunity to review this Release and explain its terms to R. Malhotra. In the event R. Malhotra signs this Release and returns it to the Company in less than the 45-day period identified above, R. Malhotra hereby acknowledges that he has freely and voluntarily chosen to waive the period allotted for considering this Release. 16. Revocation Period. For a period of seven (7) calendar days following R. Malhotra’s execution of this Release, R. Malhotra may revoke this Release. If R. Malhotra decides to revoke this Release, R. Malhotra must do so by delivering a written notice of



 

revocation within seven (7) calendar days after R. Malhotra’s execution of this Release (the “Revocation Period”) to the Company, to the attention of: Candice Levy, Senior Vice President Human Resources, c/o PAR Technology Corporation, 8383 Seneca Turnpike, New Hartford, New York 13413 or via email to [***]. Once R. Malhotra signs this Release, it will become effective, enforceable, and irrevocable, without further action by R. Malhotra or the Company, only upon the expiration of the Revocation Period. 17. Successors and Assigns. This Release, and the covenants, terms and provisions hereof, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their heirs, beneficiaries, executors, administrators, legal guardians, successors, and assigns. Further, each and every section or paragraph hereof and the covenants made thereunder are expressly intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, the Company, each of its Affiliates and each of the Released Parties, individually and collectively, against, and shall be binding on, R. Malhotra and R. Malhotra’s agents, representatives, attorneys, legal guardians, successors, assigns, spouse, heirs, beneficiaries, executors, and administrators. 18. Enforcement Fees. If R. Malhotra or the Company (or any other third-party beneficiary hereof (as described in Section 17 above)) bring(s) a lawsuit or action to enforce or interpret any part of this Release, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation it incurs (such as costs, expenses, and fees on any appeal). 19. Employment Inquiries. R. Malhotra agrees to direct all inquiries from prospective employers to the Company to the attention of: Human Resources, 8383 Seneca Turnpike, New Hartford, New York 13413 or via email to [***]. Company agrees that to the extent it receives inquiries from third parties regarding R. Malhotra’s employment; it will provide the position(s) held by R. Malhotra while employed at the Company, the dates of R. Malhotra’s employment and a statement that it is the Company’s policy to provide no other information regarding its former employees. 20. Interpretation. Captions and headings of the sections and paragraphs of this Release are intended solely for convenience and no provision of this Release is to be construed by reference to the caption or heading of any section or

paragraph. [Signature Page Follows]



 

Please indicate your agreement to the terms of this Release by signing and dating below, and scan and return the signed and dated document to: Candice Levy at [***] no later than 45 calendar days from the date you received this Release. Sincerely, PAR Technology Corporation /s/ Candice Levy __________________________ Candice Levy, SVP, Human Resources BY SIGNING BELOW, R. MALHOTRA ACKNOWLEDGES THAT R. MALHOTRA HAS CAREFULLY READ AND UNDERSTANDS THIS RELEASE, AND R. MALHOTRA VOLUNTARILY CHOSE TO ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THIS RELEASE IN CONNECTION WITH R. MALHOTRA’S SEPARATION FROM EMPLOYMENT. AGREED TO AND EXECUTED THIS 26th day of February, 2024. /s/ Raju Malhotra (Signature) Name (Print): Raju Malhotra



 



 

EXHIBIT 31.1
Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

I, Savneet Singh, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PAR Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and



b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

May 9, 2024 /s/ Savneet Singh

Savneet Singh

Chief Executive Officer & President

(Principal Executive Officer)



 

EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

I, Bryan A. Menar, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PAR Technology Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and



b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

May 9, 2024 /s/ Bryan A. Menar

Bryan A. Menar

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)



 

EXHIBIT 32.1
Certification of Principal Executive Officer

pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PAR Technology Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2024, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Savneet Singh, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, that, to my
knowledge:

(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii)The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

May 9, 2024

/s/ Savneet Singh

Savneet Singh

Chief Executive Officer & President

(Principal Executive Officer)



 

EXHIBIT 32.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer

pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PAR Technology Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2024, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Bryan A. Menar, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, that, to my knowledge:

(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii)The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

May 9, 2024

/s/ Bryan A. Menar

Bryan A. Menar

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)


